
     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                 
     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun
Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Mr Mark Anthony Galvin

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Iau, 11 Hydref 2018

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL

Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Y Cabinet Dros Faterion Rhieni Corfforaethol yn Ystafelloedd Pwyllgor 
2/3 - Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr CF31 4WB ar Dydd Mercher, 17 
Hydref 2018 am 14:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  3 - 6
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 11/07/2018

4. Plant dan Gofal Mewn Addysg 7 - 14

5. Adolygiad o'r Model ar Gyfer Gwasanaethau Ymyrraeth Gynnar 15 - 22

6. Materion Brys  
I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol

Dosbarthiad:

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
MC Clarke
N Clarke
HJ David
J Gebbie
T Giffard

CA Green
RM James
D Patel
RL Penhale-Thomas
CE Smith

CA Webster
DBF White
PJ White
HM Williams
RE Young



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD MERCHER, 11 GORFFENNAF 
2018

1

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI 
CORFFORAETHOL A GYNHALIWYD YN YSTAFELLOEDD PWYLLGOR 2/3 - SWYDDFEYDD 
DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR CF31 4WB DYDD MERCHER, 11 
GORFFENNAF 2018, AM 10:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd PJ White – Cadeirydd 

D Patel CA Webster HM Williams

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

J Gebbie a/ac CE Smith

Swyddogion:

Susan Cooper Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles
Julie Ellams Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Laura Kinsey Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol Plant

172. YMDDIHEURIADAU

Y Cynghorwyr HJ David, CE Smith ac RE Young

173. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU

Dim

174. CYMERADWYO’R COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod Pwyllgor y Cabinet dros faterion 
Rhieni Corfforaethol a gynhaliwyd ar 18 Ebrill 2018 fel cofnod cywir.      

175. AROLYGIAD O’R GWASANAETHAU PLANT – CYNLLUN GWEITHREDU

Rhoddodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles y 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y cynllun gweithredu’n gysylltiedig ag Arolygiad o’r 
gwasanaethau plant a gynhaliodd Arolygiaeth Gofal Cymru fis Mehefin 2017. Soniodd 
hefyd am y cynnydd a wnaed i roi’r argymhellion ar waith ac i fonitro unrhyw gamau nad 
oeddent wedi’u cwblhau. Hwn oedd yr adroddiad diweddaru y cytunodd i’w gyflwyno bob 
chwe mis ar ôl trafod yr adroddiad ym mis Ionawr 2018.

Rhoddodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles grynodeb 
o’r casgliadau ac eglurodd fod y tîm Cymorth Cynnar a’r Bwrdd Diogelu yn monitro’r 
Cynllun Gweithredu. Roedd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
a Lles a’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymorth i Deuluoedd yn cyd-gadeirio’r Bwrdd. 
Cynhaliwyd yr Arolygiad hwn flwyddyn yn ôl ac mae cynnydd da wedi’i wneud, ond 
roedd rhai meysydd yr oedd angen eu gwella.     

Nododd un aelod fod y rhan fwyaf o’r camau gweithredu’n wyrdd, ac roedd rhai yn felyn, 
a gofynnodd a oedd unrhyw beth na fyddai’n debygol o gael ei gwblhau ymhen amser 
rhesymol neu unrhyw feysydd lle nad oedd y cynnydd disgwyliedig wedi’i wneud. 
Eglurodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Blant y byddai unrhyw feysydd sy’n peri 
pryder yn cael eu lliwio’n goch. Roedd y rhan fwyaf o’r camau gweithredu melyn yn 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD MERCHER, 11 GORFFENNAF 
2018

2

ddarnau o waith hirdymor a fyddai’n cymryd amser i’w cyflawni. Dywedodd un aelod ei 
fod yn falch o weld bod nifer o gamau gweithredu glas wedi’u cwblhau.  

Gofynnodd un aelod a oedd cynlluniau ar y gweill i baratoi ar gyfer y newidiadau yn 
ardal Cwm Taf. Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a 
Lles y byddai rhan Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr o’r cynllun ardal yn cael ei throsglwyddo i Gwm 
Taf. Roedd Cwm Taf wedi sefydlu Bwrdd Pontio ac roedd Bwrdd Iechyd ABMU a staff 
yn aelodau o’r Bwrdd hwnnw ac yn ystyried ffrydiau gwaith yn ymwneud â 
phartneriaethau. Roedd yn bwysig parhau i ddarparu gwasanaeth o safon ac roedd y 
Swyddog Comisiynu eisoes yn creu cysylltiadau â Chwm Taf. Gofynnwyd sut roedd staff 
yn ymdopi â’r gwaith ychwanegol. Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles fod y timau’n ymdopi ar hyn o bryd ond roedd yn 
pryderu na fyddent yn gallu parhau i ysgwyddo’r llwyth gwaith ychwanegol yn y tymor 
hir. Byddai’r llwyth gwaith yn parhau i gynyddu a byddai angen adnoddau ychwanegol 
gan Lywodraeth Cymru. Roedd angen adnoddau ychwanegol ar y Byrddau Iechyd hefyd 
ac roedd cyfarfod wedi’i drefnu i drafod hyn. Byddai hyn yn waith enfawr i’r Byrddau 
Iechyd ac roedd yn bwysig bod y trefniadau rhwng y partneriaethau’n parhau a bod 
grantiau’n cael eu dadgyfuno’n briodol. Ychwanegodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros 
Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar y byddai angen yr adnoddau 
ychwanegol ar ôl cwblhau’r broses drosglwyddo er mwyn ymwreiddio’r systemau 
newydd. 

Gofynnodd un aelod sut roedd y camau gweithredu’n cael eu gwerthuso. Esboniodd y 
Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Blant fod y swyddogion yn diweddaru’r Cynllun 
Gweithredu ac yn cyflwyno adroddiad i’r Cyfarwyddwyr a’r Bwrdd i’w herio. Cyflwynir 
adroddiadau cynnydd hefyd i Arolygaeth Gofal Cymru 

Cyfeiriodd un aelod at un o argymhellion yr adroddiad yn ymwneud â safon trefniadau 
goruchwylio staff rheng flaen gan ofyn a oedd y gwasanaeth hwn yn cael ei gynnal ac a 
fyddai’n bosibl iddo barhau. Esboniodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Plant fod y rheolwyr 
yn gallu goruchwylio staff rheng flaen ac nad oedd swyddi gwag ar hyn o bryd.  Nid 
oeddent yn pryderu am drosiant staff ac roedd y sefyllfa’n cael ei fonitro’n agos mewn 
cyfweliadau ymadael. Mae nifer y staff asiantaeth wedi gostwng i ddau, y naill yn llawn 
amser a’r llall yn rhan amser, a byddai’r rhain yn gadael ddechrau’r hydref pan fyddai 
staff newydd yn dechrau. Roedd nifer o staff newydd gymhwyso ac roedd angen 
darparu sesiynau cynefino a chynnig y cymorth priodol iddynt. Roedd Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr wedi clywed yn ddiweddar eu bod wedi derbyn 
canmoliaeth a’u bod wedi’u cynnwys ar y rhestr fer yn y rownd derfynol am y cymorth 
roedd yn ei gynnig i staff yn ystod eu blwyddyn gyntaf.   

Gofynnodd un aelod a fu unrhyw newidiadau o ran nifer yr achosion a ddyrannwyd i bob 
gweithiwr cymdeithasol ar gyfartaledd. Esboniodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Plant 
mai’r nod oedd dyrannu 18 achos i bob un ac roedd i ffigur hwn yn cael ei fonitro’n agos. 
Roedd rhai gweithwyr cymdeithasol yn cael rhagor, gan ddibynnu ar gymhlethdod yr 
achosion. 

Gofynnodd un aelod a oedd problemau recriwtio a chadw. Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles nad oedd dim swyddi gwag tan yn 
ddiweddar, ond roedd y sefyllfa wedi newid erbyn hyn. Roedd prosesau newydd ar gyfer 
sicrhau ansawdd a goruchwylio ac, o ganlyniad, roedd y sefyllfa wedi gwella. Gofynnodd 
yr aelodau a oedd unrhyw themâu a oedd yn codi’n gyson mewn cyfweliadau ymadael. 
Dywedodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Plant nad oedd unrhyw themâu’n codi’n gyson ac 
ymddengys bod staff yn gadael am nifer o resymau gwahanol gan gynnwys dyrchafiad 
a’r cyfle i weithio’n agosach at adref.

Page 4



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD MERCHER, 11 GORFFENNAF 
2018

3

Cyfeiriodd un aelod at yr Ŵyl Ddysgu a gynhaliwyd yn ddiweddar i rannu profiadau a 
gwybodaeth, a hynny er budd y rhai a oedd yn addysgu a’r myfyrwyr, a holwyd a oedd 
cynlluniau tebyg gan y Gwasanaethau Plant. Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles eu bod yn bwriadu gweithio gyda’r uned hyfforddi 
ac, yn ystod y flwyddyn ddiwethaf, eu bod wedi cyfarfod â’r 21 aelod newydd o staff ar 
ddechrau’r flwyddyn ac y byddent yn eu gweld eto ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn i’w holi a 
oeddent yn ymgyfarwyddo â’r gwaith ac i hyrwyddo’r gwaith da a oedd yn mynd rhagddo 
ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr.   

Gofynnodd un aelod a fyddai’r Cyngor yn rhoi mwy o lais i blant a theuluoedd wrth ddatblygu cynlluniau 
gwasanaeth. Esboniodd Rheolwr Grŵp y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio Plant fod plant yn allweddol i’r gwaith 
o bennu trywydd gwasanaethau.  Byddai Plant sy’n Derbyn Gofal yn cyfarfod ac yn rhoi sylwadau ac roedd 
person ifanc wedi’i benodi’n ddiweddar i Gonsortiwm Comisiynu Plant Cymru . 

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Pwyllgor yn nodi adroddiad Arolygaeth Gofal Cymru ar 
Wasanaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Blant Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a’u 
sylwadau ar y Cynllun Gweithredu cysylltiedig.  

.        

176. CYMERADWYO DATGANIADAU O FWRIAD GWASANAETHAU PRESWYL

Cyflwynodd Rheolwr Grŵp y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio Plant adroddiad ar y 
datganiadau o fwriad diwygiedig ar gyfer gwasanaethau preswyl presennol Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Esboniodd ei bod yn ofynnol, o dan gyfansoddiad 
y Cyngor, i gyflwyno’r rhain i’r Pwyllgor dros faterion Rhieni Corfforaethol.

Esboniodd Rheolwr Grŵp y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddo Plant fod gan y Cyngor bedair 
uned preswyl i blant ar hyn o bryd a bod y rhain yn darparu gwasanaethau i 47 o blant a 
phobl ifanc rhwng 0 a 19 oed. Diben Deddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol 
(Cymru) 2018 oedd adeiladu ar lwyddiant rheoleiddio yng Nghymru ac adlewyrchu’r 
newidiadau ym maes gofal cymdeithasol. Byddai rheoliadau’n symud y tu hwnt i faterion 
cydymffurfio ac yn canolbwyntio mwy ar ansawdd gwasanaethau a’r effaith roeddent yn 
ei chael ar bobl. Esboniodd y byddai pob Awdurdod Lleol yn cael tystysgrif cofrestru ac y 
bydd pob Datganiad o Fwriad yn cael ei gyflwyno mewn ffordd fwy unffurf.    

Esboniodd Rheolwr Grŵp y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddo Plant nad oedd dim newidiadau 
yn y datganiad o fwriad ar gyfer Newbridge House a Harwood House. Yn achos 
Sunnybank, roedd newid yn y gwasanaeth a oedd yn cynnig lleoliadau tymor canolig/hir 
i blant a phobl ifanc rhwng 8 ac 17 oed ac, yn achos Bakers Way, roedd newidiadau yn 
oriau gweithredu’r gwasanaeth yn dilyn proses o ad-drefnu a newidiadau yn y strwythur 
staffio. Byddai datganid o fwriad newydd yn cael ei baratoi ym mis Medi 2018 ar gyfer y 
gwasanaeth preswyl newydd yn Newbridge House gan mai hwn fydd yr uned frys a’r 
uned asesu erbyn mis Hydref 2018. 

Gofynnodd un aelod am ragor o wybodaeth am newid yr oriau gweithredu yn Bakers 
Way. Esboniodd Rheolwr Grŵp y Gwasanaethau Plant fod plant a phobl ifanc yn aros 
yno’r un mor aml ond bod yr oriau wedi’u gostwng gan nad oedd yr uned yn llawn. 
Roedd y gyfradd llenwi wedi codi i 92% ac roedd hyn yn dilyn proses ymgynghori eang. 
Roedd yr adborth a gafwyd yn dilyn y newidiadau wedi bod ffafriol iawn. Roedd Bakers 
Way yn cael ei adnewyddu ar hyn o bryd ac roedd trafodaethau’n cael eu cynnal â phob 
teulu i sicrhau eu bod yn gwybod am hynt y datblygiadau.   

PENDERFYNWYD:  Bod yr aelodau’n nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad ac yn cymeradwyo’r 
datganiad o fwriad ar gyfer pob un o’r unedau preswyl.             

Page 5



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD MERCHER, 11 GORFFENNAF 
2018

4

177. ADOLYGIAD O’R BROSES O WNEUD PENDERFYNIADAU YNGHYLCH PLANT SY’N 
DERBYN GOFAL

Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Blant adroddiad y Sefydliad Gofal 
Cyhoeddus ar yr adolygiad a’r cynllun gweithredu cysylltiedig. Esboniodd bod y gwaith o 
oruchwylio a rheoli plant sy’n derbyn gofal yn un o brif flaenoriaethau’r Cyngor ac roedd 
wedi ymrwymo i wella ymhellach y gwasanaethau ymyrraeth gynnar a’r gwasanaethau 
statudol i blant, pobl ifanc a’u teuluoedd.  

Ym mis Tachwedd 2017, cynhaliodd y Sefydliad Gofal Cyhoeddus adolygiad o’r llwybrau 
a oedd ar gael i blant a phobl ifanc yr oedd angen gofal arnynt dros y flwyddyn 
ddiwethaf. Y diben oedd adolygu penderfyniadau, dadansoddi arfer yn eu gofal, 
archwilio ymyriadau a sut y gellid gwneud penderfyniadau mwy effeithiol. Cyfeiriodd y 
Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Blant at argymhellion yr adroddiad ac at y cynllun 
gweithredu sydd ynghlwm yn Atodiad 2. Cafodd y cynllun gweithredu ei ddatblygu er 
mwyn rhoi’r argymhellion ar waith ac roedd yn cael ei fonitro gan y gwasanaeth Cymorth 
Cynnar a’r Bwrdd Diogelu a oedd cael ei gyd-gadeirio gan Gyfarwyddwyr Corfforaethol y 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles, ac Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd.   

Cyfeiriodd un aelod at yr argymhelliad i sicrhau mwy o gysondeb yn asesiadau’r 
gwasanaethau cymdeithasol gan ofyn beth oedd yn digwydd yn y cyswllt hwn. 
Esboniodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Blant fod gweithwyr cymdeithasol wedi cael 
hyfforddiant gorfodol a bod y canllawiau asesu wedi’u diwygio. Byddai’r system newydd 
yn cael ei lansio dros yr wythnosau nesaf a’i hadolygu ar ôl 12 mis.

Cyfeiriodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Blant at gynllun peilot yng Nghasnewydd i 
deuluoedd mewn amgylchiadau anodd. Roedd y gwasanaeth hwn i’w weld yn llwyddo 
ac roedd menter debyg yn cael ei datblygu yng Nghwm Taf gyda Barnardos. Mae nifer o 
deuluoedd wedi’u cyfeirio at y gwasanaeth a bydd adroddiad ar lwyddiant y cynllun yn 
cael ei gynhyrchu maes o law.  

PENDERFYNWYD: Nododd y Pwyllgor adroddiad y Sefydliad Gofal Cyhoeddus a’r 
Cynllun Gweithredu cysylltiedig. 

                       

178. EITEMAU BRYS

Dim

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 11:10

Page 6



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CORPORATE PARENTING COMMITTEE 

17 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT 

LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN IN EDUCATION

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Corporate Parenting Committee with an 
update on the support for Looked After Children in Education (LACE) across the local 
authority. The report will specifically focus on the support provided to, and the 
attainment outcomes of, Bridgend’s Looked After Children (LAC) for the school year 
2017-2018.

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities

2.1 This area of work supports the achievement of the following corporate priorities:  

 Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the county a 
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to 
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and 
ambitions of all people in the county. 

 Helping people to be more self-reliant – taking early steps to reduce or 
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its 
services.

 Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the community 
that can help deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3. Background

3.1 It is well researched and documented that LAC often under achieve compared to 
their peers in terms of educational attainment and are less likely to progress into 
further education or training. There are a range of reasons for this, but, in general, 
where a child is struggling at an early stage of their education, not attending school 
regularly, with little support and encouragement at home, they will generally do less 
well at later stages.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



3.2 Children become looked after often as a last resort and many are already having 
problems with their education.  The education of our children and young people who 
are looked after is rightly seen as vitally important by all who are concerned with 
achieving positive outcomes. It remains a challenge for all agencies to help raise 
standards and ensure that children and young people maintain or regain an interest 
in education and achieve their full potential when residing within the care system.

3.3 In May 2018, the role of supporting LACE moved into the newly created Vulnerable 
Groups Team (VGT). The local authority continues to discharge its statutory 
responsibilities for LAC through this team. In addition, the team offers advice, support 
and training to schools while also working in close partnership with Children’s Social 
Care and other Early Help services to ensure LAC are accessing good quality 
education that meets their needs. The team also works with school clusters around a 
consistent approach in utilising the LAC Pupil Development Grant (PDG).

4. Current situation

4.1 The Pupil Level Annual School Census (PLASC) data on LAC showed that as at 
January 2018, there were 278 LAC pupils in Bridgend. These can be profiled against 
the following school clusters:

School cluster Number of LAC
Archbishop McGrath Catholic High School 10
Brynteg School 48
Bryntirion Comprehensive School 23
Coleg Cymunedol Y Dderwen 47
Cynffig Comprehensive School 27
Maesteg School 29
Pencoed Comprehensive School 34
Porthcawl Comprehensive School 24
Special Schools 24
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd 12

4.2 Locally, a significant amount of work is being undertaken to ensure that the right 
support for all pupils, including LAC, is achieved. This includes the development of 
the access to education panel (AEP). The panel has been created to ensure that all 
children are accessing education that meets their needs in a timely manner. Any 
child who is having difficulties in a school setting leading to them being at risk of 
dropping out of education is discussed and planned for. This panel also considers 
LAC learners where issues in education are identified.

4.3 As indicated earlier in the report, the role of supporting LACE moved into the recently 
created VGT. The development of the VGT has provided a single point of contact for 
all agencies including schools, Children Social Care and other Early Help services for 
information, advice, training and guidance for vulnerable learners including LAC. The 

Page 8



team deliver training to the schools and remain a point of contact for the Designated 
Teacher related to Personal Education Plans (PEPs) and any other issues presenting 
for LAC. In addition to this, the team has worked with each school cluster to develop 
a clear and coherent plan to support LAC via the PDG. This plan includes the 
development of a training package for all schools and specifically for the Designated 
Teacher. Please see Appendix 1 for examples of support from the VGT.

4.4 The VGT training includes raising awareness across schools on the impact of 
becoming a looked after child. This training covers the impact of trauma and how this 
can affect a child’s ability to engage in learning. Research from Public Health Wales 
linked to adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) highlights that those individuals 
affected by four or more ACEs are seven times more likely to be absent from school 
than those with no ACEs. In addition, the team will also facilitate mental health first 
aid training to schools in response to the impact on LAC emotional wellbeing. 

4.5 The local authority has also been central to the development of a work experience 
and apprenticeship opportunity for LAC. This opportunity was developed as a 
pathway for those learners leaving education in the summer with the aim of securing 
an employment opportunity. All Year 11 LAC learners were presented with the 
opportunity to engage in work experience over their summer holidays. Seven of 
those learners took up this opportunity. Outcomes from this project include four of 
those securing an Agored qualification. Agored Cymru is an officially recognised 
awarding organisation that operates within both the Qualifications and Credit 
Framework (QCF) and the Credit and Qualifications Framework for Wales (CQFW). 
One further LAC young person secured an apprenticeship within the local authority. 

4.6 Recent visits to schools in the county also highlight how a number have introduced 
learning support assistants within their provision to assist with literacy and numeracy 
of LAC. This support offers a consistent member of staff for the learner. It is well 
known that consistency in workers for LAC is a crucial factor in developing 
relationships and resilience given their experiences of loss and trauma. Research 
conducted by the Children's Social Care Research and Development Centre 
(CASCADE) highlights that disruptions to their day in the form of visits from social 
workers and other professionals that were scheduled in school hours impacted on 
their learning. The fact that an increasing number of schools are now providing 
learning support assistants dedicated to LAC pupils is a positive response to this and 
enables more consistency of support.

Bridgend LAC school attainment 

   Foundation Phase 
CChildren achieving the Foundation Phase indicator at the end of the Foundation Phase

Page 9



BCBC LAC

Academic 
Year

No. 
achieved 
FPI

Cohort
% 
achieved 
CSI

BCBC (All 
Children)

CSC (All 
Children)

Wales (All 
Children)

2015-16 7 18 38.9% 87.1 88.6 87
2016-17 9 13 69.2% 89.1 88.6 87.3
2017-18 17 22 77.3% 86.3 84.7 82.6

Positively, 77.3% of children achieved the foundation phase indicator which is an increase 
on previous years. However, caution is needed when making comparrisons due to the 
relatively small numbers and the changeable nature of some looked after children placements

Key Stage 2 
Children achieving the Core Subject Indicator at the end of Key Stage 2

BCBC LAC

Academic 
Year

No. 
achieved 
CSI

Cohort
% 
achieved 
CSI

BCBC (All 
Children)

CSC (All 
Children)

Wales (All 
Children)

2015-16 20 27 74.1% 87.9 89.5 88.6
2016-17 20 30 66.7% 89.4 90.2 89.5
2017-18 11 23 47.8% 88.3 90.3 89.5
47.8% of LAC in Bridgend achieved the core subject indicator in 2017 – 18. This is a decrease 
on previous years but again caution needs to be given when looking to make comparrisons. 

Key Stage 3
Children achieving the Core Subject Indicator at the end of Key Stage 3

BCBC LAC

Academic 
Year

No. 
achieved 
CSI

Cohort
% 
achieved 
CSI

BCBC (All 
Children)

CSC (All 
Children)

Wales (All 
Children)

2015-16 17 25 68.0% 87.4 86.7 85.9
2016-17 14 27 51.9% 89 87.9 87.4
2017-18 15 21 71.4% 90.2 88.7 88.1
71.4% of LAC achieved the core subject indicator in 2017-18. Positively, this is an increase 
on previous years but again would need the caveat that the cohort may be stonger and is 
statistically a small amount for analysis

Key Stage 4
Children achieving the Level 1, 2 and 2+ thresholds at the end of Key Stage 4

Level 1 
Threshold BCBC LAC

Academic 
Year

No. 
achieved 
threshold

Cohort
% 
achieved 
CSI

BCBC (All 
Children)

CSC (All 
Children)

Wales (All 
Children)

Page 10



2015-16 17 26 65.4% 95.4 95.4 95.3
2016-17 22 32 68.8% 94.1 94.3 94.4

2017-18  19 26 73.1%  94.0 
provisional  n/a 94.0 

provisonal
This appears to be a positive upward trend of closing the attainment gap for children who are 
LAC but again is a small statistical group. 

Level 2 
Threshold BCBC LAC

Academic 
Year

No. 
achieved 
threshold

Cohort
% 
achieved 
CSI

BCBC (All 
Children)

CSC (All 
Children)

Wales (All 
Children)

2015-16 13 26 50.0% 88 87.1 84
2016-17 4 32 12.5% 67.9 67.6 67

2017-18 9 26 34.6%  70.0 
provisonal  n/a  67.0 

provisional 
This appears to be a positive upward trend of closing the attainment gap for children who are 
LAC and a reversal of the less positive outcomes in the prior year but again is a small 
statistical group. 

Level 2+ 
Threshold BCBC LAC

Academic 
Year

No. 
achieved 
threshold

Cohort
% 
achieved 
CSI

BCBC (All 
Children)

CSC (All 
Children)

Wales (All 
Children)

2015-16 5 26 19.2% 61.7 60.9 60.3
2016-17 3 32 9.4% 53 54.5 54.6

2017-18  9 26 34.6%  57.0 
provisional  n/a  55.1 

provisional 
When the level 2 and level 2 plus children are added it means that 69% of the Year 11 LAC 
achieve a level 2 or more which is a significant increase on the 22% comparison from the 
preceeeding year and is the same as the combined outcomes for 2015-16. 

Page 11



5.      Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework and procedure rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 There are no direct equality impact issues arising from this report.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

7.1 The work of the schools and the local authority to support children who are LAC is 
aligned with the aims of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

8. Financial implications

8.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. However, the 
Committee may wish to note that the LAC PDG which is distributed to schools for 
2018-2019 amounts to £240,987. 

9. Recommendations

9.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Parenting Committee notes the content of the 
report. 

Contact Officer: Mark Lewis
Group Manager Integrated Working and Family Support 

Telephone: (01656) 642679
E-mail: Mark.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
Postal Address Level 2, Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB

Background documents

None

Appendix 1 – Examples of Support from the Vulnerable Groups Team (VGT)

Page 12

mailto:Mark.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk


Case study one 

Year 10 LAC 

September 2018 school rang Vulnerable Groups Team (VGT) seeking advice on 
how to permanently exclude a child. It then transpired that the child was LAC and 
that due process had not been adhered to. 

Following VGT advice, school issued a 10-day, fixed-term exclusion. The team 
has followed up, linking in with the child’s social worker and advising of support for 
including a preventative Youth Justice referral due to the nature of the incident. 

Outcome – permanent exclusion avoided, school supported and child accessing 
support in community that meets their needs.

Case study two 

Year 11 LAC

The VGT met with a LAC, the social worker and the parent to discuss a possible 
change of school.  The young person in question was about to enter into Year 11 
but was for a variety of reasons seeking to change school at this critical phase.

The VGT Coordinator was able to meet with the young person and ascertain his 
wishes and feelings and address his concerns about upsetting family members in 
his schooling wishes. His wishes were conveyed to the social worker and parent 
and it was agreed that the young person involved would remain in his current 
school with some additional mentoring support.

Feedback from social worker:

“I just want to say thank you for attending the meeting last Friday with ***. Due to 
the complexities of educational issues it was refreshing to have someone who is 
child centered and knew what support and resources available for him.

*** father said he was “very impressed” how you explained things to *** and made 
sure that *** fully understood his options.  I for one, will most definitely be calling 
you in the future to support other young people on my caseload in similar 
situations as ***.” 

Case study three
Year 8 LAC child 

Child was permanently excluded. It then transpired that the child was a former 
LAC. The VGT attended the disciplinary meeting and were able to put forward 
mitigating factors linked to the child’s behavior and experience of being looked 
after. The committee overturned the permanent exclusion. Additional support was 
put in place for the child at a follow up meeting that VGT attended. The child 
remains within that current school.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CORPORATE PARENTING COMMITTEE

17 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE
DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT 

REVIEW OF THE MODEL FOR EARLY INTERVENTION SERVICES

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Corporate Parenting Committee with an 
update on the work completed to date in response to one of the recommendations 
made by the Institute of Public Care (IPC) specifically around the impact of early 
help services. 

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities

2.1 This area of work supports the achievement of the following corporate 
priority/priorities:  

 Helping people to be more self-reliant– taking early steps to reduce or 
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its 
services.

 Supporting a successful economy – supporting young people into education, 
employment and training.

 Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical, 
human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible and 
support the development of resources throughout the community that can help 
deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3. Background

3.1 IPC was commissioned by Bridgend’s Children’s Social Care Management Team to 
undertake a learning review of selected cases where children have become looked 
after. The purpose of the review was to consider whether there were areas for 
improvements in practice, guidance and protocols that could be achieved.  IPC 
reviewed 35 cases across the following age ranges

 pre-birth;
 0 to 11 years-old; and 
 13 to 17 year-old.

3.2 The recommendations which came from that review were: 

 Strengthen earlier assessments of pre-birth families.
 Review services that are available to parents following the removal of their 

children with a view of preventing future removals.
 Parenting and psychological assessments completed at Child Protection or 

Public Law Outline stage. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 Utilise Family Group Conferences.
 Ensure completion of chronologies.
 Improve consistency in social work assessment.
 Work with partner agencies to improve information sharing.
 Ensure good quality supervision of cases is administered. 
 Review the impact early intervention services have to ensure that they are 

making a difference for children and families. 

4. Current situation/proposal

4.1 In response to the final recommendation (ie to review the impact early intervention 
services have to ensure that they are making a difference for children and families), 
the Family Support Services Manager reviewed existing services available within 
the Central Hub that support children and young people open to Children’s Social 
Care. These services include:

Connecting Families 

4.2 This is a multi-agency team offering a 12-week intensive intervention to families 
whose children are at risk of becoming looked after or are already looked after but 
require additional intervention to return home to family. The support consists of 
intensive support (2 to 3 visits a week). The service has been operational since 
2011.

4.3 During 2017-2018, the service worked with 204 children who were deemed to be at 
risk of coming into the care system. Following support, 91% (186/204) were 
prevented from becoming looked after and remain out of care. 

Western Bay Integrated Family Support Services (IFSS)

4.4 The statutory Integrated Family Support Service (IFSS) works with parents with 
substance misuse issues to prevent children becoming looked after or who are in 
care, with a plan to return home. The service is a Western Bay collaboration which 
is led by Bridgend and delivers intensive (3 to 4 visits a week) evidenced-based 
interventions to whole families for 4 to 6 weeks. 

4.5 The service is relatively small and worked with 33 children during 2017-2018. 
Positive outcomes include 6 children being deemed no further action and  closed to 
Children’s Social Care following intensive support.

Rapid Response

4.6 A rapid response service was introduced in August 2017. This service was 
introduced in recognition that there are occasions when children and families 
require support in an immediate fashion in order to prevent issues escalating. The 
workers offer intensive support (3 to 4 visits a week) for a 4 to 6-week period 
including early mornings, evenings and weekends. 

4.7 The service worked with 121 children who were deemed to be at risk of entering the 
care system from August 2017 to March 2018. Following support, 92.6% (112 / 121) 
remain out of care.

Page 16



New Services 

4.8 It is important to note that the Central Hub has developed new services to assist in 
the prevention of children becoming looked after. These include the Baby in Mind 
and Reflect services. 

Baby in Mind Service

4.9 The Baby in Mind service provides intensive multi-agency support at a crucial time 
for parents of pre-birth and post birth babies. It ensures that risks can be managed, 
and would prevent the baby from becoming either separated from its parent(s) or 
being placed in a mother/parent and baby placement. In 2016-2017, the local 
authority utilised 23 parent and baby placements. These are high cost and raise 
questions as to whether these families could have been supported in the 
community. There was a clear need for a local service to assist pregnant mothers 
and their partners to develop the necessary skills to keep their children safe. This 
new service assists social workers in assessing and care planning for these 
children and families where there is a risk of care proceedings and the care system 
possibly being required. This had been highlighted as an issue within the IPC 
review. The service was fully recruited to in July 2018 and at this stage it is too early 
to demonstrate the anticipated positive impact of the service. 

Reflect Service

4.10 The Reflect Service is a Welsh Government initiative developed to work with 
mothers who have had children removed from their care following care 
proceedings. There is a wealth of evidence that highlights the vulnerabilities for 
these individuals in respect of repeat pregnancies. Across Bridgend (as at  1 
October 2018)  there were 74 children in care whose mothers had previously had 
children removed suggesting that there were some missed opportunities in 
preventing repeat pregnancy leading to children social care involvement. The 
Reflect project has been developed in response to this. This project is being 
delivered as part of a regional arrangement with Rhondda Cynon Taf County 
Borough Council and Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council. The service became 
operational in May 2018 and the service has engaged with 11 parents from 
Bridgend to date. 

Summary of local authority visits and workshop

4.11 Following the IPC recommendations, the Family Support Services Manager in Early 
Help and Principal Officer within Children Social Care undertook joint visits to three 
other local authorities, who were deemed to have good early help services. These 
were Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council, Newport City Council and 
Carmarthenshire County Borough Council. In addition, a workshop with managers 
across early help and children social care was held in May 2018. The purpose of 
which was to review existing services, share good practice from the three local 
authorities visited, and identify any perceived gaps in service provision.

4.12 The rationale for visiting these three local authorities can be seen at Appendix 1. 
Each of these local authorities has been able to demonstrate a consistent reduction 
in looked after children (LAC) (per 10,000 population) over the past four years 
(2014-2017) and exploration as to how this has been achieved was required.  

Page 17



4.13 Following the visits and the workshop, it is apparent that there is no significant 
difference in the way in which Bridgend delivers its edge of care services compared 
to the local authorities visited. There was no substantial evidence from other local 
authorities or via the workshop that there needs to be significant changes or re-
direction of services at this time. It is important to note that there are a number of 
new services that have come into effect around the prevention of LAC in 2018 and it 
will be important to evaluate the impact of these services in due course. If it is 
evident that these services are not supporting the reduction of LAC following 
evaluation, then a re-direction of resources will be considered.

4.14 What was, however, apparent during this work was the significant similarities 
between the delivery models within family support services across comparator local 
authorities. In particular, the focus on intensive support for children and families 
along with evidenced based interventions. 

4.15 What was also evident in relation to support services were the concerns that all 
local authorities visited had in respect of the impact of IFSS on children and 
families. All commented that they were considering alternative ways in delivering 
the IFSS work to ensure value for money. This is an area that is already being 
explored in Bridgend with a restructure of the service currently being implemented. 

4.16 It is important to note, that all the three local authorities have developed social work 
models of practice that have been embedded for a number of years. All these 
models appear to focus on outcomes for children and families alongside managing 
risk. The three local authorities were clear in their delivery of such models and its 
benefit for staff for example improved retention of social work staff with a focus on 
service users and an ability to manage increased risk. 

4.17 All local authorities commented on the positive joint-working relationship between 
Early Help and Children’s Social Care in Bridgend. It was evident that Bridgend is 
more advanced in relation to step up/step down work between Children’s Social 
Care and Early Help and seamless transitions for children and families. All local 
authorities appeared to be facing similar challenges. There are clearly pressures for 
Early Help in relation to increased service demand and Safeguarding thresholds. It 
must be noted that each local authority visited as part of this review expressed that 
they were under pressure to reduce its spending which has led to increased focus 
on their LAC population. Careful consideration needs to be given as to how Early 
Help and Children’s Social Care can continue to provide positive support to children 
and families given the risks associated with predominately annual grant monies to 
fund Early help services and associated service demand.

4.18 The workshop that was held between staff within Early Help and Children’s Social 
Care reflected a significant amount of what was identified through visits to the other 
local authorities, in that no significant changes were felt to be necessary. The group 
acknowledged the benefit of having a social work model of intervention and how 
this would assist in recruitment and retention of social workers but also provide 
some consistency in the approach to engaging with children and families. It was 
noted that edge of care services offer good quality interventions and assist social 
workers in undertaking assessments of families around whether children are at risk 
of coming into care. This assertion is supported by performance data. However, it 
was also noted that at times services could be more responsive. Alongside this, the 

Page 18



need for specialist support for children with disabilities where behaviors are leading 
to the child being at risk at coming into care was raised within the workshop.

4.19 Bridgend’s financial policy in respect of Special Guardianship Orders (SGOs) was 
also discussed during visits to the three local authorities and within the workshop. 
This policy has been recognised as being equitable and robust by other local 
authorities.  However, it may be that an improved financial offer to potential Special 
Guardians who are existing foster carers could lead to an increased number of 
applications being made.  The cost implications of any new financial policy would 
need to be closely examined. However, it is likely that an improved financial policy 
would support the local authority to decrease its LAC population. 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework and procedure rules

6. Equalities Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no equality issues arising from this report. 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

7.1 No assessment has been undertaken to date. However, the emphasis of this report 
is around intervening at the earliest stage with children and families with the aim of 
preventing issues from escalating. The work between both services can achieve 
this aim in terms of improving the well-being of future generations and improving 
outcomes for children and families.

8. Financial implications

8.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report at present. However, 
for any of the considerations below to be developed further they will first need to be 
assessed individually for any financial implications.  These will continue to be part of 
the monitoring process going forward and will be reported as part of the forward 
work programme.

9. Considerations

9.1 The following matters for consideration and discussion were presented to the local 
authority’s Corporate Management Board (CMB) on 27 September 2018:

9.2

9.3

There is a need to reconfigure IFSS to work across a Cwm Taf footprint in 
future as well as expanding the criteria to include work with families affected by 
mental health and domestic abuse in line with guidance from Welsh 
Government. Further to this, the service will also begin to work with more 
cases than the previous guidance has issued with the hope of demonstrating 
an improved impact in relation to prevention of LAC. This work has 
commenced.

Re-brand the Central Hub to ensure clarity on edge of care services. 

9.4 Additional capacity to meet the increased demand at the front door of Early 

Page 19



Help services. (This has recently been actioned).

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

A model of social work intervention for the local authority should be agreed and 
implemented by March 2019 in order to align social work practice with other 
local authorities who have demonstrated a decrease in LAC numbers.

Review the re-unification work undertaken within Children’s Social Care and 
Central Hub to determine ways to increase the number of children returned 
home to family following a period in care by December 2018. This review will 
need to include recommendations relating to the Care Crisis review and 
specifically the use of the NSPCC toolkit. 

Evaluate the new service provisions of Baby in Mind, Rapid Response Team 
and Reflect service in April 2019. 

Secure a resource to introduce three practice support worker roles within the 
family placement teams to assist with direct work, crisis intervention, 
placement support for LAC including weekend and evening working.

Review Bridgend County Borough Council’s SGO policy to consider alternative 
packages of financial support which may contribute to a reduction in LAC by 
April 2019. 
 
To explore options linked to the Facing the Challenge service within Western 
Bay to support children with a disability who are at risk of coming into care. 
Further exploration into the need, cost and demand for the service will need to 
be undertaken to ensure any decision to commission support is evidenced 
based. 

10. Recommendations

10.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Parenting Committee notes the 
considerations above and monitors progress towards the implementation of these 
as part of its forward work programme.

Contact Officer: Mark Lewis
Group Manager Integrated Working and Family Support 

Telephone: (01656) 642679
E-mail: Mark.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
Postal Address Level 2, Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4AR

Background documents

None

Page 20

mailto:Mark.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk


Appendix 1 Looked After Children Data

 The number of Looked After children in Bridgend per 10,000 of population aged under 18 decreased from 142 in 2014, to 131 
in 2016.  

 This figure increased slightly in 2017 to 134 per 10,000, however this is in line with the average across all Welsh local 
authorities, with 68% of local authorities reporting an increase in the LAC figures from 2016 to 2017.

 The reduction in the LAC figures could in part be attributed to the restructure of Early Help services in April 2015

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Plant dan Gofal Mewn Addysg
	5 Adolygiad o'r Model ar Gyfer Gwasanaethau Ymyrraeth Gynnar

